
https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/COUNCIL - 1st and 3rd Thurs/2022-11-03 CityCouncil/2022-11-03CityCouncilAgenda.docx 
11/2/2022 8:16 AM 

                  

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 
 CITY OF WATERLOO COUNCIL AGENDA 

COUNCIL CHAMBER OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING – 136 N. MONROE STREET 
Thursday, November 3, 2022 – 7:00 p.m. 

Participate Remotely Or In-Person 
 

Join Zoom Meeting      https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88692911493?pwd=T3FZRlZqRTl5ekZNQnpaZHoxM0p6dz09 
Meeting ID: 886 9291 1493      Passcode: 313057 
Dial by phone  +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)      

Pursuant to Section 19.84 Wisconsin Statutes, notice is hereby given to the public and news media, that a public 
meeting will be held to consider the following: 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 
 

2) MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL :Open and Closed October 20, 2022  
 

3) CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4) OLD BUSINESS 
a) Discussion on TID 5 Overlay Creation  Resolution 2022-34 Authorizing non-Metro Connections to begin TID 5 

Creation Work.   
 

5) MEETING SUMMARIES (since last Council meeting) 
a) 10/24/2022 Fire/EMS General Meeting 
b) 10/25/2022 Plan Commission 
c) 10/25/2022 Library Board 
d) 10/27/2022 Special Finance Meeting 
e) 11/01/2022 Waterloo Water & Light  
f) 11/03/2022 Special Plan Commission 
g) 11/03/2022 Public Safety & Health 
h) 11/03/2022 Public Works & Property Committee 

 
6) RECOMMENDATIONS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS 

a) Public Safety & Health Committee 
i) Request to Hire Officer for Full Time to Fill Vacancy  
ii) Holiday Parade 
iii) Resolution 2022-34 Authorizing Kunkel Engineering Group to Start Field work and Road Reconstruction 

Design Work for Waterloo Road. (Approved at 10-6-2022 meeting. Just bringing back as Resolution) 
b) Plan Commission 

i) Ordinance §385-10.2 Conditional Use Application, Kera Casto, For The Property Located at 868 Anna Ct, 
Waterloo. The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit to allow for a home based business on the 
subject parcel. A conditional use permit is required for a Residential District (R-1) property when owner wishes 
to add a home occupation. Tax Parcel 290-0813-0523-005.  LOT 32, PARK HILLS.  Also known as 868 Anna Ct 

 
7) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Winter On-street Parking Permit Application - §350-7(g), 363 Jefferson St Tracy Aide.  2 cars  
 

8) FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
a) Public Budget hearing November 17, 2022 7pm 
 

9) ADJOURNMENT 
 

Jeanne Ritter Clerk/Deputy Treasurer       Posted & Emailed: 11/01/2022  

PLEASE NOTE: It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above meeting(s) to gather 

information. No action will be taken by any governmental body other than that specifically noticed. Also, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled 

individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request such services please contact the clerk’s office at the above location 

http://www.waterloowi.us/






   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
info@non-mc.com 329 W 3rd St. Fox Lake, WI 53933 (920) 203-3859 
 
 
October 18, 2022 
 
Waterloo City Hall 
Attn: CDA  
136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI 53594 
 
Re: TID 5 Creation  
 
Dear CDA: 
 
 Non-metro Connections is interested in submitting a proposal for TID 5 creation for the 
City of Waterloo, and as such, is submitting the following for your consideration. Non-Metro 
Connections plans to utilize Short Elliot Hendrickson, Inc. as a subconsultant for the process of 
TID #5 creation. 
 

1. Scope of Work 
 
Creation of TID #5 Project Plan and Map.  
In consultation with the Client, Consultant will prepare a project plan describing the boundary of Tax 
Increment Financing District #5 (“TID #5”), anticipated projects and the identification of how those 
projects will be implemented and financed. A TID boundary map and boundary description will 
include parcel identification numbers as reflected on current assessment rolls and/or tax list of the 
assessor for Jefferson County, Wisconsin. The Project Plan development shall include but not be 
limited to the following tasks: 

a. Preparation of a Project Plan process (task and timetable) based upon 
confirmed meeting schedules as it related to Wisc. Stats. required approvals. 

b. Preparation of the Project Plan to stimulate further economic development 
through public investment in eligible capital costs and other expenditures to be 
identified in the Project Plan. 

c. Develop and prepare the required elements of the Project Plan, more specifically 
inclusion of a financial analysis of eligible expenditures as well as new eligible 
expenditures based upon redevelopment and economic opportunities presented 
to the City Council for an identified expenditure period of the Project Plan. 

d. Preparation eligible expenditure costs schedule TID cash flow (pro forma) to identify 
ability to pay for costs anticipated from a Tax Increment District fund of the City. 

mailto:info@non-mc.com


   
 
 
 
 

e. Communications with City Council and the Plan Commission as necessary to complete 
the Project Plan for submission and presentation to the Plan Commission for 
consideration and approving resolution to the Common Council. 

Project Plan Approval Process. Assist the Client with the preparation of the documentation and 
resolutions necessary for Project Plan approvals, including but not limited to: 

f. A written request to other taxing units (the “Overlapping Taxing Units”), requesting 
that a representative serve on the Joint Review Board (the “JRB”). The Client will 
be responsible for sending these written requests. The JRB shall be composed of a 
representative from: (i) school district, (ii) technical college district the (iii) City, 
and (iv) a member of the public. 

g. Notice to property owners located within the TID. If the TID is a blighted or 
rehabilitation/ conservation type classification, the affected properties and owners 
will be identified. The City will be responsible for filing and mailing via first-class mail 
notification letters at least 15-days prior to the scheduled public hearing. 

h. Public notice for the Plan Commission Public Hearing. The Client will be responsible for 
publishing and posting the official public notice. The first notice to be published 14 
days prior to the public hearing, the second notice 7 days prior, in accordance with 
Wisc. Stats. 

i. Participation and presentation of the Project Plan and TID to the Plan 
Commission prior to consideration of a resolution for approval to the City 
Council. 

j. Resolution of the City Plan Commission approving the Project Plan and the TID. 

k. Participation and presentation of the Project Plan and TID to the City Council prior to 
consideration of a resolution adopting the Project Plan and the TID. 

l. Resolution of the City Council approving the Project Plan and the TID. If the 
Resolution is approved, assist the Client with the filing of the approving 
documentation to the JRB. 

m. Assistance to the Client to convene a JRB meeting. Consultant will prepare a public 
meeting notice for publication by the Client. The Client will be responsible for 
distribution, publishing and posting of the public hearing notice. 

n. Resolution of the JRB approving the documents filed by the City as it relates to the Project 
Plan and the creation of a TID. 

o. Wisc. Stats. forms as appropriate for filing: PE-605, PE-605T, PE-605ER or PE-605A, PE-606, 
PE- 608, PE-601A, PE-619, PE-608M, PE-608MP and PE-615A, including communication 
with the local and manufacturing assessors to ensure accurate current assessment 
values. 

Wisconsin Department of Revenue. Assist the Client with the preparation of documentation for 
submission and filing with the Wisconsin Department of Revenue (the “DOR”) as it relates to 
the creation of a TID. 

p. Consultant will prepare the DOR application, as required by the State’s TID Application 
Checklist, and submit in partnership with the City Clerk, to the DOR for base value 



   
 
 
 
 

certification. The Client will provide the appropriate application fee to the DOR. 

q. Consultant will assist the Client in responding to questions or directives from the DOR 
based upon its review and certification of the base process. 

r. Following the DOR’s certification letter provided to the City Clerk, the Consultant will 
provide direction to the local or county assessor to identify parcels within the TID on the 
most current tax list (assessment roll) and to the City Clerk for the identification on the 
tax list. 

 
2. Schedule  

 
Consultant will start services promptly (10/21). Consultant estimates services will take 
approximately 6 month to complete. 

 
 

3. Payment 
 

 
 
Payment will be requested via monthly invoice as services are performed.  

 
Thank you for reviewing this proposal and your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Everett Butzine 



Draft TID #5 BoundaryProject: WATEL 168479

Figure
1

501 MAPLE AVENUE
DELAFIELD, WI 53018-9351

PHONE: (262) 646-6855
FAX: (888) 908-8166
TF: (800) 325-2055

www.sehinc.com
FOR DISCUSSION ONLYMap by: bgrace

Projection:
Source: 

Print Date: 10/27/2022

Waterloo, WI
This map is neither a legally recorded map nor a survey map and is not intended to be used as one. This map is a compilation of records, information, and data gathered from various sources listed on this map and is to be used for reference purposes only.  SEH does not warrant that the Geographic
Information System (GIS) Data used to prepare this map are error free, and SEH does not represent that the GIS Data can be used for navigational, tracking, or any other purpose requiring exacting measurement of distance or direction or precision in the depiction of geographic features.  The user of this
map acknowledges that SEH shall not be liable for any damages which arise out of the user's access or use of data provided.

Pa
th:

 C
:\P

roj
ec

ts\
UZ

\W
ate

rlo
o\m

xd
\W

AT
EL

_T
ID

5 M
ap

.m
xd Legend

TID #4 Boundary
TID #5 Draft Boundary
City Waterloo Parcels
City Boundary



Education Session:

Tax Increment Financing
to Support Multi-family 

Development in Waterloo



2021 Jefferson County Housing Study



Jefferson County Single Family Median Sales Price

Year Median Home Price Increase from 
Previous Year

Total % Appreciation 
Since 2016

2016 $175,000

2017 $184,950 5.7% 5.7%

2018 $215,000 16.2% 22.9%

2019 $230,900 7.4% 31.9%

2020 $249,950 8.3% 42.8%

2021 $278,000 11.2% 58.9%
Source: MetroMLS; Summary Statistics for Entire MLS

Source: MetroMLS Monthly Local Market Report; September 2022



Jefferson County data | OEWS 2021 data

Occupation Average Wage

Management Occupations $109,420 

Business and Financial Operations Occupations $66,420 

Computer and Mathematical Occupations $69,080 

Architecture and Engineering Occupations $71,800 

Life, Physical, and Social Science Occupations $64,790 

Community and Social Service Occupations $52,320 

Legal Occupations $68,100 

Educational Instruction and Library Occupations $48,780 

Arts, Design, Entertainment, Sports, and Media Occupations $55,630 

Healthcare Practitioners and Technical Occupations $87,780 

Healthcare Support Occupations $30,810 

Protective Service Occupations $54,450 

Food Preparation and Serving Related Occupations $25,660 

Building and Grounds Cleaning and Maintenance Occupations $31,930 

Personal Care and Service Occupations $30,180 

Sales and Related Occupations $39,910 

Office and Administrative Support Occupations $39,960 

Farming, Fishing, and Forestry Occupations $35,360 

Construction and Extraction Occupations $51,460 

Installation, Maintenance, and Repair Occupations $51,250 

Production Occupations $40,950 

Transportation and Material Moving Occupations $37,490 

Families making $93,000/ year –
can spend up to $2,325 before 
becoming house burdened

Scenario: Buying a $309,500 house

20% down: $61,900

Mortgage: $247,600

7.5% 30-yr fixed mortgage: 

$1,731 principal and interest

$513.77 taxes 

$75 insurance

$2,319.77



Missing Middle Housing



MAKING A CASE FOR MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
IN WATERLOO – Demographic Trends

2010 2020

Average household size 2.48 2.09

Households with 4+ people 18.4% 10.1%

Householder living alone 32.9%

Households with no children <18 67.2%



MAKING A CASE FOR MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
IN WATERLOO – Housing Trends

1-unit structures 64%

Number of Bedrooms
74% have 2-3 bedrooms

11.5% have 4+ bedrooms

Age of structure 60% of existing structures built before 1980

26% of existing structures built before 1940



Dempsey 
Property 
Proposed 
Development

• Duquaine Development –
requesting ~ $3,000,000 of TIF 
assistance





TID 4 – New residential development
• I have $32,500 of administration charged through the life of the 

TID. $65,000 for ED consultant and City Clerk divided in 
half. TID 4 share is $32,500

• There was a DOR correction on this TID as well.
• New residential development at 97% of construction costs, 

divided between 2023 and 2025 construction years.
• TID can close successfully, but if the developer is provided 60% 

of the increment the incentive of $3 million is not paid off by 
the closure date. Could extend the TID by 3 years, but this will 
still not pay the $3 million incentive in full.

• City’s portion of increment revenue would accumulate to about 
$1.4 by the end of the TID. This may not be enough to pay for 
improvements and the interest expense on borrowing to fund 
the projects.



What is Tax Increment Financing?

• Key acronyms:
• TIF → Tax Increment Financing (the tool)

• TID → Tax Increment District (boundary where the tool is used)

• One of the strongest economic development tools in the State of 
Wisconsin.

• Allows municipalities to capture incremental property tax revenue 
from growth in defined area and use it to benefit that area.



Source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue







TID 5 – New residential development
• I have administration to pay for the new project plan and 

then I charged $2,500 through the life of the TID.
• No other development is assumed and no potential City 

projects have been modeled.
• New residential development at 97% of construction 

costs, divided between 2023 and 2025 construction 
years.

• TID can close successfully, with the developer provided 
60% of the increment as incentive up to $3 
million. Based upon the assumptions, the TID could pay 
the developer off by 2041 and have funds on hand to 
construct improvements.

• The available fund balance (City’s portion of the 
increment revenue) that would need to pay for principal 
and interest on a loan to finance the projects would be 
approximately $2.6 million.



Proposal: Create TID 5 Overlay

TID 5 →Mixed-use 
• Max life: 20 years
• At least 50% of district must be:

• Industrial
• Commercial
• Residential

• Newly platted residential can only make up no more than 35% of district.

TID Overlay Basics
• Boundary of one TID that covers another existing TID’s boundaries.
• TID overlay district:

• “freezes” property value of TID area it covers
• TID overlay collects any new increment created within the district



The City of Lake Mill’s adopted “Smart Growth” 

Comprehensive Plan incorporates the adopted 
Northside Neighborhood Plan for development of a 
755-acre area north of I-94. 

The Plan provides for a mix of development types 

including:
• Commercial
• Mixed residential/commercial areas 

• Single- and multi-family residential 
development

The plan provides detailed recommendations on a 
mix of single- and multi- family residences to serve a 

variety of household sizes, types, and incomes and 
includes specific recommendations on design and 

quality standards to ensure residential and 
commercial character in keeping with the City’s small 
town character and ensure connectivity throughout 
the northside. 

Example: Lake Mills – Mixed-Use TID #7









Waterloo TID #5 Creation Timeline PRELIMINARY DRAFT   9/27/2022

MEETINGS PROJECT MILESTONES & DELIVERABLES

Community Development Authority (CDA) 18-Oct TID #5 Concept Discussion -  
Non Metro / SEH Contract Consideration

Finance Committee & City Council 20-Oct Non Metro / SEH Contract Consideration
Kick-Off Meeting with NMC week of 24-Oct Confirm Project Schedule

- week of 24-Oct Start to Prepare TID #5 Map & Project Plan

Plan Commission (PC)
25-Oct (evaluate this 

date; might be too 
soon)

Introduce TID #5 - Review Purpose & Concept for 
TID #5 Creation

-

Mail Letter to Administrators of all overlying taxing 
jurisdictions and to JRB Members with date of PC & 
JRB meetings - include a copy of the Plan 
Commission PH Notice

- Post Publication Notice for Initial JRB meeting at 
least 5 days prior

- Post Public Hearing Notice for Plan Commission 
Public Hearing at least 7 days prior

Initial Joint Review Board (JRB)
Introduce TID #5 
(meeting to be within 14 days after the PC public hearing notice & prior to PC 
Public Hearing)

- Develop Draft of TID #5 Project Plan & Maps

Plan Commission (PC)
Public Hearing - Review & Consideration of TID #5 
Project Plan
(meeting to be at least 15-days prior to Council action)

- Refine TID #5 Project Plan & Maps

- Provide Project Plans to City Attorney for Review & 
Legal Opinion

City Council Consideration of TID #5 Project Plan 

- Post Publication Notice for JRB meeting at least 5 
days prior

Joint Review Board (JRB) Consideration of TID #5 Project Plan 
Date for TID #5 Base Value Determination 1-Jan Finalized Adopted TID #5 Project Plan

WI Department of Revenue Deadline 30-Sep Deadline for Adoption of Municipal Resolution for 
TID #5 Creation (for 2023 Base Value)

2023

2022

TIMELINE



Page 1 of 1  

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/FILESHARES/DATA/common/resolutions/2022 resolutions/b - proposed/2022-36 authorizing non-metro connections 
to begin tid 5 creation work/#2022-36authorizing non-metroconnection to begin tid 5 creation.docx 
11/1/2022 12:51 PM 

                                           

                          136 North Monroe Street 
   Waterloo, WI 53594-1198 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
Fax: (920) 478-2021  

            www.waterloowi.us 

______________________________________________________________________________              _ 
 

RESOLUTION #2022-34 
Authorizing Non-Metro Connections To begin TID 5 Creation Work. 

 

The Common Council of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin does hereby resolve as follows: 
 
Whereas, the Plan Commission at its November 3, 2022 meeting recommended to the City Council 
approval for Non-Metro Connections to begin work on TID 5 creation.  
 
Whereas, this TID creation will be paid for with a loan from TID 2.  This loan will be repaid to TID 2 with a 
date TBD with finalization of the TID documents. 
 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Waterloo City Council, does hereby concur with the recommendation 
authorizing Non-Metro Connections to begin work on TID 5. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of ______ 2022. 
 
 
       City of Waterloo 
 
 
 

      Signed:  ______________________________________ 
                    Jenifer Quimby, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jeanne Ritter, Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 
 
SPONSOR(S) – Plan Commission 
 

http://www.waterloowi.us/


                 
                          136 North Monroe Street  

Waterloo, WI  53594 
      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 

      Fax: (920) 478-2021 
      www.waterloowi.us 

 

______________________________________________________________________________              __ 
  

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL EVENT or ENTERTAINMENT LICENSE 
 
Any Special Event or Entertainment Event sponsor requesting municipal approvals, services, assistance, and/or other 
support from the City of Waterloo for a special or entertainment event on public or private property must provide the 
following information. 
 
Submittal of application does not constitute approval. All applications must be reviewed. 
 
NAME OF SPONSOR (Applicant):           
 
STATUS: (circle one) unincorporated  incorporated   individual  other    
 
CONTACT NAME:             
 
PHONE NUMBER:     /    /    

DAYTIME       EVENING    FAX 
 

EMAIL ADDRESS:            
 
NAME OF EVENT:            
 
TYPE OF EVENT: (circle one) Festival  Parade  Caravan  Rally March  
 Race   Tag  Day  Other                   
PURPOSE OF EVENT:           
 
DATE OF EVENT:            
 
EVENT HOURS:                           SET UP HOURS                          BREAKDOWN___________ 
 
DESCRIPTION OF EVENT:           
 
SITE/ADDRESS FOR EVENT (list if multiple locations)        
            
 
PROJECTED ATTENDANCE:     PAST ATTENDANCE:      
 
NUMBER OF VOLUNTEERS/PERSONNEL FOR EVENT:       
 
RAIN POLICY:            
 
DATE APPLICATION MADE           
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pursuant to Section 172-2 Waterloo Municipal Code 
Application for Special Event or Entertainment License 
 
Form created: 03/11/2004 

Page 1 of 8 
License Application 

http://www.waterloowi.us/


 
 
 
HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE: 
The special event or entertainment sponsor hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the City of Waterloo, 
Wisconsin, its agents, public officials, officers, employees and authorized volunteers, from and against any and all 
legal actions, claims, damages, losses, expenses arising out of the permitted event/activity or any activity associated 
with the conduct of the sponsor’s operation of the event, including but not limited to, claims for personal or bodily 
injury, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of property, excluding claims caused by the willful commission or 
omission by employees of the City of Waterloo acting within the scope of their employment. 
 
Further, the event sponsor agrees to indemnify the City of Waterloo and any of its agents, public officers, officials or 
employees and authorized volunteers for any attorneys fees and court costs incurred or to be incurred in defending 
any actions brought against them as a result of the sponsor’s use of public property or operation of the event as set 
forth in the application for special permit. 
 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: 
Proof of insurance is required of all Special or Entertainment Event Sponsors before the event. The attached list of 
insurance requirements should be reviewed immediately with your Insurance Agent to comply. Please provide a 
Certificate of Insurance with your completed application by,             20      to the City Clerk’s Office 136 N. Monroe 
Street, Waterloo, WI. 53594. Insurance coverage shall be from companies and in amounts acceptable to the City of 
Waterloo. Failure to provide said acceptable insurance coverage in a timely manner is grounds for non-issuance or 
revocation of the permit. 
 
PERMITTED USE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY: 
Whereas the Special or Entertainment Event Sponsor agrees to use the public property at              
in Waterloo, Wisconsin, known as, for staging of, the City of Waterloo does hereby agree to permit for use, at no cost, 
these premises for the date(s) of           through           20      .  Sponsor does 
hereby agree to conduct only that business/activity which is described in the Special Event Permit Application, and 
agrees to all municipal requirements. Sponsor further agrees that within thirty (30) days of the conclusion of the event 
it will, at its own expense, provide for the repair, replacement or maintenance of any damaged, lost or stolen portions 
of the subject property including, but not limited to landscaping, street or buildings and/or pavement. 
 
LIABILITY WAIVER: 
The event sponsor agrees for itself and/or its employees, agents, or volunteers associated or to be associated with the 
activity for which the permit is being sought, to waive and relinquish all claims that may result in any manner against 
the City of Waterloo, its agents, public officers, officials or employees and authorized volunteers from said sponsored 
event or activity, except for acts caused by the willful and wanton misconduct by employees of the City of Waterloo 
acting within the scope of their employment. 
 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES: 
I hereby attest that I am authorized to bind the sponsor and/or its employees, agents, or volunteers associated or to be 
associated with the activity for which the permit is being sought, to the terms of this agreement. I have read and 
understand all regulations and requirements outlined herein. I/we do hereby agree to abide by all rules and regulations 
outlined herein. I/we hereby agree to meet all requirements for documentation, certification, licensing, financial 
responsibility and all other aspects of staging a Special Event in the City of Waterloo, as outlined herein. I/we 
understand that our lack of meeting all requirements outlined herein may result in the denial or cancellation of the 
proposed Special or Entertainment Event. Permit applied for and all terms and stipulations agreed to by: 
 
                                          

Name (please print)       Signature 
 
          

Signatory Title (if applicable)      Date 
 
 
 

Pursuant to Section 172-2 Waterloo Municipal Code 
Application for Special Event or Entertainment License 
 
Form created: 03/11/2004 

Page 2 of 8 
License Application 

PCParks
Stamp



 
 
 
THIS APPLICATION, WITH A DETAILED SITE PLAN ATTACHED, AND ANY OTHER APPLICABLE DOCUMENTS 
AS OUTLINED HEREIN, MUST BE REMITTED TO THE CLERK’S OFFICE NO LATER THAN NINETY DAYS (90) 
PRIOR TO THE OPENING DAY OF THE EVENT. Application received late or incomplete may be denied. Direct mail 
to the City Clerk, City of Waterloo, 136 N. Monroe Street, Waterloo, WI. 53594. A copy of the application will then 
be forwarded to the appropriate committees and or Departments for consideration of approval, denial, and scheduling. 
 
 
 
Date application received:         Received by:                           
 
 
 
Clerk’s Office to complete the section below:  
 
Cc:   
           
               Police Department            Council Approval              
                                 Date 

               Fire Department      
               
              Public Works             Certificate of Insurance 
 
              Waterloo Utilities 
 
       
 

 
Fee for Profit Events = $50.00 per event. 
 
Fee is WAIVED for events held or sponsored by educational, charitable, nonprofit, or religious 
organizations when the proceeds are devoted to the purposes of such organization. 
 
 
 
 
Fee Paid:     Date Paid:     
 
 
 
Receipted by:         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pursuant to Section 172-2 Waterloo Municipal Code 
Application for Special Event or Entertainment License 
 
Form created: 03/11/2004, Revised: 03/22/2017 

Page 3 of 8 
License Application 



 
 
 
Attachment 1 
 

CITY OF WATERLOO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS 

 
1. The City of Waterloo requires submission of a Certificate of Insurance along with the Special or Entertainment 
Events Application prior to review by the City’s Government Operations Committee. 
 
2. The Certificate of Insurance must include the following minimum limits of insurance coverage required for special 
events on City property:  
 
$300,000 Injury or death of one person; $1,000,000 for any one accident; $50,000 for Property Damage. 
 
3. The City of Waterloo must be named on the Certificate of Insurance as primary, non-contributory additional 
insured under the general liability policy for the event. 
 
4. The Certificate of Insurance must include the name of the special event, and the date, time and location of the 
event. 
 
5. The City of Waterloo reserves the right to request a copy of the actual policy represented by the Certificate of 
Insurance. 
 
6. No event will be allowed to proceed without receipt by the City of a valid Certificate of Insurance in full 
compliance with the above listed requirements. 
 
Any questions regarding these insurance requirements should be directed to the City Clerk’s Office at (920) 478-3025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pursuant to Section 172-2 Waterloo Municipal Code 
Application for Special Event or Entertainment License 
 
Form created: 03/11/2004 

Page 4 of 8 
License Application 

 



 
 

SPECIAL EVENT or ENTERTAINMENT WORKSHEET 
 
 
NAME OF EVENT:            
 
DATE (S) OF EVENT:      HOURS:     
 
LOCATION/PROPERTY:           
 
SAFETY PROCEDURES: 

1) Will you be providing private on-site security?  YES   NO 

If yes, list security company name.          

Where will security be needed?          

What times will security be needed?          

Will WPD officers be required?   YES   NO 

Municipal estimation of cost:    WPD Personnel @ $   /hour = $   

2) What are your plans for medical assistance?        

Municipal estimation of cost:   WFD equipment/personnel @ $ hours= $   

3) Will there be fireworks at your event?   YES   NO 

Date of fireworks    Time of Fireworks      

Name/Address of company supplying fireworks_______________________________________ 

Fire Marshall must be contacted for approval and consultation. 

SET UP / CLEAN UP PROCEDURES: 

1) Name of person in charge of set up: ___________________________ phone #___________ 

2) What time will set up begin: _________________________ 

3) Name of clean up contact person:     Cell Phone#    

4) Estimated time for clean up after event:          

FEES AND PROCEEDS: 

1) Will admission be charged for this event?  YES   NO 

If yes, how much: Adult  Seniors__________  Students________ _ 

Children 5 & under________ Families_______________ 

2) If a participant fee is charged, please indicate the amount: Booth: _________________  

Concessionaire:      

 
Waterloo, WI 

Page 5 of 8 
Worksheet 



 

3) Will alcoholic beverage(s) be sold?   YES   NO 

If yes, what beverage and at what cost? ____________________________________________ 

4) What does the Sponsor intend to do with any revenue over and above the expenditures?  
             

(If this is a first year event, please provide a budget. If it is a repeat event, provide last year’s 
financials.) 

ENTERTAINMENT AND PROMOTIONS: 

2) List names of performers and entertainment groups: 

________________________________________  _________________________________ 

________________________________________  _________________________________ 

2) Describe other entertainment / activities planned for your event:      

              

3) How will your event be promoted? Television  Radio  Newspapers  Posters   Flyers 

other________________________________________________________________________ 

PUBLIC PROPERTIES PROCEDURES: 

If you are requesting city services, please complete the following area: 

1) Will you need barricades?   YES   NO 

Purpose of barricades:           

Location of placement: ________________________________ Amount needed ____________ 

Date barricades needed_________________________ Time of placement_________________ 

Name of company providing service if other than City _________________________________ 

2) Will you require electrical service(s)   YES   NO 

Entertainment: number of amps___________= ______________lines @ $20 Cost$__________ 

Equipment being used:__________________________________________________________ 

Location__________________________ Entertainer name_____________________________ 

Entertainment: number of amps__________=_______________lines@ $20 Cost $__________ 

Equipment being used: _________________________________________________________ 

Location: ________________________ Entertainer name______________________________ 

 

 
Waterloo, WI 

Page 6 of 8 
Worksheet 

 



 

Concessions: _________________amps= _________________lines @ $20 Cost $__________ 

Equipment being used: _________________________________________________________ 

Location:_____________________________________________________________________ 

Concessions: _________________ amps=________________lines @ $20 Cost $___________ 

Equipment being used: _________________________________________________________ 

Location:_____________________________________________________________________ 

Name of company providing service if other than City: _________________________________ 

3) Will you need fencing installed?   YES   NO 

Purpose of fencing: ____________________________________________________________ 

Location: _________________________________________ Amount: ____________________ 

Date needed______________________ Time needed_________________________ 

Estimated costs: _____________locations @ $100. = $____________ Total costs 

4) Will parking considerations be needed   YES   NO 

Type(s)______________________________________________________________________ 

Location:_________________________________Amount______________________________ 

Date: _______________________________Time: ___________________________________ 

5) Will picnic tables be needed?   YES   NO 

Location__________________________________________ Amount_____________________ 

Date needed: ____________________________ Time needed _________________________ 

Estimated cost(s) ___________Picnic tables @ $5.00 per table = $_______________________ 

6) Is a street sweeper needed?   YES   NO 

Location _______________________________Date_______________ Time______________ 

Estimated cost(s) ________ hours @ __________= $__________ total cost 

Name of company providing service, if not City: ______________________________________ 

7) Will you need additional trash bins? YES NO 

If yes how many requested?  Cardboard trash bins ______ Barrels________ 

Where do you want them placed? _________________________________________________ 

Name of disposal company if other than the City: _____________________________________ 

Where will dumpster be place: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Waterloo, WI 

Page 7 of 8 
Worksheet 

 



 

8) Will water connection be needed?   YES   NO 

Location______________________________________Amount_________________________ 

Date___________________________ Time_______________________________ 

Estimated costs: ________connection(s) @ $20.00 = $_____________Total water costs 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Waterloo, WI 

Page 8 of 8 
Worksheet 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 1  

HTTPS://WATERLOOWI.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/FILESHARES/DATA/common/resolutions/2022 resolutions/b - proposed/2022-34authorizing kunkel engineering group 
to start field work for waterloo rd/#2022-34 keg authorized to start waterloo rd.docx 
11/1/2022 12:44 PM 

                                           

                          136 North Monroe Street 
   Waterloo, WI 53594-1198 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
Fax: (920) 478-2021  

            www.waterloowi.us 

______________________________________________________________________________              _ 
 

RESOLUTION #2022-34 
Authorizing Kunkel Engineering Group To Start Field Work And Road Reconstruction 

Design Work For Waterloo Road. 
 

The Common Council of the City of Waterloo, Wisconsin does hereby resolve as follows: 
 
Whereas, the Public Works & Property Committee at its October 6, 2022 meeting recommended City 
Council approval to allow Kunkel Engineering Group to begin field work and reconstruction plans for 
Waterloo Road.  
 
Therefore, Be It Resolved, that the Waterloo City Council, does hereby concur with the recommendation 
authorizing 2022 engineering expenses in an amount yet determined from the Capital Fund for Waterloo 
Road improvements. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of ______ 2022. 
 
       City of Waterloo 
 
 

      Signed:  ______________________________________ 
                    Jenifer Quimby, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jeanne Ritter, Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 
 
SPONSOR(S) – Public Works & Property Committee 

http://www.waterloowi.us/






 

https://waterloowi.sharepoint.com/sites/Fileshares/data/Common/AGENDAS_ MINUTES/2022/PLAN COMM - 4th Tues/2022-10-25 Plan 
Comm/Casto CUP Public Hearing Notice.docx 

                 

                          136 North Monroe Street  
Waterloo, WI  53594 

      Phone:  (920) 478-3025 
      Fax: (920) 478-2021 

      www.waterloowi.us 

_____________________________________________________________________________              _________ 

 
 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT UNDER PROVISIONS  

  OF CHAPTER §385-10.2 OF THE ZONING CODE OF THE CITY OF WATERLOO, 

JEFFERSON COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

     Please take notice that the Plan Commission of the City of Waterloo, 

Jefferson County, Wisconsin, acting under provisions of Chapter §385-10.2 of 

the Zoning Code of the City of Waterloo, shall hold a public hearing on the 

matter of a conditional use application received from Kera Casto, owner of 868 

Anna Ct Waterloo, WI. 

 

 The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit to allow for a home 

business at the subject parcel. A conditional use permit is required for a 

home-based business in a R-1 single family residential district.   

 

 The property is described as follows: 

• Parcel 290-0813-0523-005 (LOT 32, PARK HILLS) 

• Also known as 868 ANNA CT 

 

     Be further notified that the Plan Commission will hear all persons 

interested or their agents or attorneys concerning the conditional use permit 

application at a public hearing.  The public hearing will be held at 6:00 p.m. 

on, October 25, 2022 in the Council Chamber of the Municipal Building, 136 N. 

Monroe Street, Waterloo.   

 

     After the public hearing, the Plan Commission shall recommend approval, 

denial, or conditional approval of the conditional use permit to the Common 

Council. The City Council will act on the Plan Commission's recommendation at 

its regular scheduled meeting on Thursday, November 3, 2022. 
      

     

        

       Jeanne Ritter 

       City Clerk/Deputy Treasurer 

 

Pub:  The Courier: September 29, 2022 

http://www.waterloowi.us/


The following Code does not display images or complicated formatting. Codes should be viewed online. 

This tool is only meant for editing.  

§ 385-10.2 Home occupations in residential districts.  

[Added 7-2-2009 by Ord. No. 2009-09]  

A. Intent. It is the intent of this section to provide a means to accommodate a small home-based 

business without the necessity of a rezoning the land area from an R-1, R1-A, or R-2 District to a 

commercial district. Home occupations are economic activities permitted within any single-family 

detached residence which comply with the following requirements. Examples include the provision 

of personal and professional services. Once a home occupation has been approved, it may not be 

expanded or enlarged.  

B. Requirements. Any individual who desires to locate a home occupation within a dwelling located in 

one of the residential districts described in Subsection A, shall make written application to the Plan 

Commission for approval thereof. Said application shall contain complete and accurate description 

of the proposed home occupation; and such additional information as the Zoning Administrator 

and/or the Plan Commission may require. In determining whether or not to approve any requested 

home occupation, the Plan Commission shall be guided by the following criteria: 

(1) The home occupation shall be conducted only within the enclosed area of the dwelling unit or an 

attached garage.  

(2) There shall be no exterior alterations of the structure which change the character thereof as a 

dwelling. There shall be no exterior evidence of the home occupation other than those signs 

permitted in the district.  

(3) No storage or display of materials, goods, supplies, or equipment related to the operation of the 

home occupation shall be visible outside any structures located on the premises.  

(4) No home occupation use shall create smoke, odor, glare, noise, dust, vibration, fire hazard, small 

electrical interference or any other nuisance not normally associated with the average residential use 

in the district.  

(5) Only one sign may be used to indicate the type of home occupation. Such sign shall not be 

illuminated and shall not exceed three square feet.  

(6) The home occupation shall not involve the use of commercial vehicles for more than occasional 

delivery of materials to or from the premises.  

(7) Authorized home occupations are restricted to service-oriented businesses and the mass production 

of items or products or the sale of items or products on the premises is prohibited. Examples of 

service-oriented businesses include, but are not limited to, computer programming, accounting, law, 

insurance agencies and computer-based consulting and clerical services.  

(8) Authorized home occupations shall not occupy more than 30% of the floor area of the dwelling in 

question.  

(9) Persons employed in home occupations shall be limited to the resident, immediate family members, 

and no more than one nonresident employee.  

(10) Under no circumstances shall a motor vehicle repair or body work business qualify as an authorized 

home occupation.  

(11) No animals shall be involved in any authorized home occupation.  

(12) Home day care is an authorized home occupation so long as it does not involve more than seven 

children or require state licensing.  



C. Conditional uses. Any proposed home occupation which does not satisfy the criteria established in 

Subsection B above may be authorized by the Plan Commission as a conditional use, subject to the 

requirements of § 385-21 and the following: 

(1) The extent of the equipment or machinery used in the home occupation may be restricted by the Plan 

Commission.  

(2) Sale or transfer of the subject property or the expansion of the approved home occupation shall cause 

the conditional use permit to terminate.  

 






	Insert from: "Waterloo TIF_Schedule DRAFT_09-27-2022.pdf"
	Schedule

	Insert from: "Holiday Parade Application.pdf"
	CITY OF WATERLOO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR SPECIAL EVENTS


	Textfield: 
	NAME OF SPONSOR Applicant: City of Waterloo - Parks Department
	other: Government
	CONTACT NAME: Gabe Haberkorn
	Textfield-0: (920) 478-3025
	Textfield-1: (920) 988-6297
	Textfield-2: (920) 478-2021
	EMAIL ADDRESS: parks@waterloowi.us
	NAME OF EVENT: WinterFest 2022
	Other: 
	PURPOSE OF EVENT: Celebrate the Holiday Season and to help raise funds for Waterloo Parks Department
	DATE OF EVENT: December 3, 2022 (Saturday)
	EVENT HOURS: 5 pm - 5:30 pm
	SET UP HOURS: 4 pm
	BREAKDOWN: 6 pm
	DESCRIPTION OF EVENT: Parade to mark the Holiday Season
	SITEADDRESS FOR EVENT list if multiple locations: Van Holten Parking Lot, Downtown Waterloo, Waterloo Firemen's Park
	Textfield-3: 
	PROJECTED ATTENDANCE: 250
	PAST ATTENDANCE: NA
	NUMBER OF VOLUNTEERSPERSONNEL FOR EVENT: None
	RAIN POLICY: None
	DATE APPLICATION MADE: November 1, 2022
	CheckBox1: Off
	CheckBox2: Off
	CheckBox3: Off
	CheckBox4: Yes
	CheckBox5: Off
	CheckBox6: Off
	CheckBox7: Yes
	CheckBox8: Off
	CheckBox9: Off
	CheckBox10: Off
	CheckBox11: Off
	CheckBox12: Off
	CheckBox13: Off
	Certificate of Insurance with your completed appli: 
	20: 
	Whereas the Special or Entertainment Event Sponsor: Van Holten Pickle Comp.
	these premises for the dates of: December 3, 2022 (Saturday)
	through: December 3, 2022 (Saturday)
	20-0: 22
	Name please print: Gabe Haberkorn
	Signature: 
	Signatory Title if applicable: City of Waterloo Parks Coordinator
	Date: November 1, 2022
	Date application received: 
	Received by: 
	Textfield-4: 
	Textfield-5: 
	Council Approval: 
	Textfield-6: 
	Textfield-7: 
	Textfield-8: 
	Textfield-9: 
	Fee Paid: 
	Date Paid: 
	Receipted by: 
	NAME OF EVENT-0: WinterFest 2022
	DATE S OF EVENT: December 3, 2022 (Saturday)
	HOURS: 5 pm - 5:30 pm
	LOCATIONPROPERTY: Van Holten Parking Lot, Downtown Waterloo, Waterloo Firemen's Park
	SAFETY PROCEDURES1 Will you be providing private o: SAFETY PROCEDURES1 Will you be providing private o_NO_On
	If yes list security company name: 
	Where will security be needed: 
	What times will security be needed: 
	RadioButton: _YES_On
	Municipal estimation of cost: 
	WPD Personnel: 
	hour: 
	2 What are your plans for medical assistance: None
	Municipal estimation of cost-0: 
	WFD equipmentpersonnel: 
	hours: 
	RadioButton-0: _NO-0_On
	Date of fireworks: 
	Time of Fireworks: 
	NameAddress of company supplying fireworks: 
	1 Name of person in charge of set up: Gabe Haberkorn
	phone: (920) 988-6297
	2 What time will set up begin: 4 pm
	3 Name of clean up contact person: Gabe Haberkorn
	Cell Phone: (920) 988-6297
	4 Estimated time for clean up after event: 6 pm
	RadioButton-1: _NO-1_On
	If yes how much Adult: 
	Seniors: 
	Students: 
	Children 5  under: 
	Families: 
	2 If a participant fee is charged please indicate: 
	Concessionaire: 
	RadioButton-2: _NO-2_On
	If yes what beverage and at what cost: 
	4 What does the Sponsor intend to do with any reve: 
	Textfield-10: Support Waterloo Parks Department
	Textfield-11: 
	Textfield-12: 
	other-0: Social Media, Posters and Flyers
	PUBLIC PROPERTIES PROCEDURESIf you are requesting: PUBLIC PROPERTIES PROCEDURESIf you are requesting_NO_On
	Purpose of barricades: 
	Location of placement: 
	Amount needed: 
	Date barricades needed: 
	Time of placement: 
	Name of company providing service if other than Ci: 
	RadioButton-3: _NO-3_On
	Entertainment number of amps: 
	Textfield-13: 
	lines  20 Cost: 
	Equipment being used: 
	Location: 
	Entertainer name: 
	Entertainment number of amps-0: 
	Textfield-14: 
	lines 20 Cost: 
	Equipment being used-0: 
	Location-0: 
	Entertainer name-0: 
	Concessions: 
	amps: 
	lines  20 Cost-0: 
	Equipment being used-1: 
	Location-1: 
	Concessions-0: 
	amps-0: 
	lines  20 Cost-1: 
	Equipment being used-2: 
	Location-2: 
	Name of company providing service if other than Ci-0: 
	RadioButton-4: _NO-4_On
	Purpose of fencing: 
	Location-3: 
	Amount: 
	Date needed: 
	Time needed: 
	Estimated costs: 
	Textfield-15: 
	RadioButton-5: _NO-5_On
	Types: 
	Location-4: 
	Amount-0: 
	Date-0: 
	Time: 
	RadioButton-6: Off
	Location-5: 
	Amount-1: 
	Date needed-0: 
	Time needed-0: 
	Estimated costs-0: 
	Textfield-16: 
	Picnic tables  500 per table: Picnic tables  500 per table_NO_On
	Location-6: 
	Date-1: 
	Time-0: 
	Estimated costs-1: 
	hours-0: 
	Textfield-17: 
	Name of company providing service if not City: 
	If yes how many requested Cardboard trash bins: 
	Barrels: 
	Where do you want them placed: 
	Name of disposal company if other than the City: 
	Where will dumpster be place: 
	CheckBox15: Yes
	RadioButton-7: _NO-7_On
	Location-7: 
	Amount-2: 
	Date-2: 
	Time-1: 
	Estimated costs-2: 
	Textfield-18: 


